11/16/93

087

FILED

SID J. WHITE

NOV 18 1993

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

By _____
Chief Deputy Clerk

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

MICHAEL BEDFORD
APPELLANT

v.

CASE# 81,896

STATE OF FLORIDA, ET AL
APPELLEE

PETITION FOR WRIT OF CERTIORARI
AND/OR REVIEW

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

NATURE AND PREFERENCE AND
JURISDICTION: RULE 9.120 (d)
FLORIDA RULES OF APPELLATE PROCEDURE

SUBMITTED BY APPELLANT, IN PRO SE:

MICHAEL BEDFORD, 028348
FLORIDA STATE PRISON
P.O. BOX 747
STARKE, FL 32091

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

THE DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION OF THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA MAY BE SOUGHT TO REVIEW: A DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL THAT: EXPRESSLY OR DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH A DECISION OF ANOTHER DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OR OF THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA ON THE SAME QUESTION OF LAW.

IN THE CASE AT BAR, THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL'S DECISION OF MAY 12, 1993, CONFLICTS WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA, WHEN IT AFFIRMED THE DENIAL OF APPELLANT'S RULE 3.800 (2), FLA. R. CRIM. P. MOTION, WHICH IN FACT MADE LEGAL THE IMPOSITION OF THE CAPITAL SENTENCE OF LIFE IMPRISONMENT ADDING THE SPECIAL PROVISION THAT APPELLANT MUST SERVE NO LESS THAN TWENTY-FIVE (25) YEARS BEFORE BEING ELIGIBLE FOR PAROLE, § 775.082 (1) " FOR THE CRIME OF KIDNAPPING, § 787.01, F.S., A FIRST DEGREE FELONY. AN ENHANCEMENT OF THE PENALTY FOR THAT CRIME WHICH IS IN EXCESS OF THE MAXIMUM PUNISHMENT AUTHORIZED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA.

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE

APPELLANT CONTENDS THAT THE TRIAL COURT'S IMPOSITION OF A TERM OF A NATURAL LIFE SENTENCE WITH THE SPECIAL PROVISION THAT THE APPELLANT SHALL SERVE NO LESS THAN TWENTY-FIVE (25) YEARS IN ACCORD WITH THE PROVISIONS OF FLORIDA STATUTE § 775.082 (1) " AS APPLIED TO THE TRIAL COURT'S SENTENCE OR COURT II, KIDNAPPING, F.S. 787.01. A FIRST DEGREE FELONY, IS AN ILLEGAL SENTENCE DUE TO THE FACT THAT IT IS IN EXCESS OF THE MAXIMUM PUNISHMENT AUTHORIZED BY LAW.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

ON JANUARY 27, 1987, THE BROWARD COUNTY GRAND JURY RETURNED, BY INDICTMENT, THE FOLLOWING CHARGES AGAINST THE APPELLANT, AND CO-DEFENDANT V. WALSH:

COUNT I, FIRST DEGREE PREMEDITATED MURDER, § 782.04, F.S.

COUNT II, KIDNAPPING, § 787.01, F.S.

ON NOVEMBER 22, 1988, APPELLANT WAS FOUND GUILTY ON BOTH COUNTS AND AFTER AN ADVISORY HEARING, THE JURY RECOMMENDED A TERM OF LIFE IMPRISONMENT WITHOUT POSSIBILITY OF PAROLE FOR 25 YEARS FOR THE CHARGE OF FIRST DEGREE MURDER AS STATED IN COUNT I.

ON JANUARY 20, 1989, THE 17th JUDICIAL CIRCUIT COURT IMPOSED THE DEATH PENALTY ON COUNT I, AND A NATURAL LIFE SENTENCE ON COUNT II, APPELLANT APPEALED

ON OCTOBER 10, 1991, THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT UPHOLD THE CONVICTIONS AND SENTENCE IMPOSED ON THE KIDNAPPING CHARGE, COUNT II, BUT REVERSED THE DEATH PENALTY IMPOSED ON COUNT I, ORDERING APPELLANT TO BE RESENTENCED ON COUNT I TO A LIFE SENTENCE WITHOUT POSSIBILITY OF PAROLE FOR 25 YEARS, § 775.082 (1), (A. EX A, Pg 1-4)

ON FEBRUARY 27, 1992, THE TRIAL COURT RESENTENCED APPELLANT TO A TERM OF LIFE IMPRISONMENT, PURSUANT TO § 775.082 (1), AS IS PROPER FOR A CONVICTION OF FIRST DEGREE MURDER AS CHARGED PER COUNT I, BUT, THE HONORABLE JUDGE MEL GROSSMAN, ALSO IMPOSED THE SENTENCE OF A TERM OF LIFE IMPRISONMENT, (WITHOUT POSSIBILITY OF PAROLE FOR 25 YEARS, AS PER § 775.082 (1)) FOR THE CRIME OF KIDNAPPING, § 787.01, F.S. COUNT II, WHICH IS A FIRST DEGREE FELONY PUNISHABLE BY A TERM OF IMPRISONMENT FOR LIFE, OR A TERM OF IMPRISONMENT NOT EXCEEDING FORTY (40) YEARS AS PER § 775.082 (3)(2).

ON JUNE 10, 1992, APPELLANT FILED A MOTION TO CORRECT AN ILLEGAL SENTENCE PURSUANT TO RULE 3.800 (2) FLA. R. CRIM. P.

ON AUGUST 3, 1992, THE 17TH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT COURT DENIED APPELLANT'S RULE 3.800 (a) MOTION AND APPELLANT FILED A TIMELY APPEAL. (A. TEX F, PG 14).

ON MAY 12, 1993, THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, CITING LAW OF THE CASE, AFFIRMED THE DENIAL OF APPELLANT'S RULE 3.800 (c) MOTION, (A. TEX K, PG 61) WHICH IN FACT IMPOSED AND MADE LEGAL THE CAPITAL SENTENCE OF LIFE WITHOUT THE POSSIBILITY OF PAROLE FOR TWENTY-FIVE (25) YEARS FOR THE CRIME OF KIDNAPPING, § 787.01, F.S. A FIRST DEGREE FELONY. APPELLANT FILED A TIMELY PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS, AT BAR,

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

ON JANUARY 2, 1988, APPELLANT, ALONG WITH CO-DEFENDANT V. WALSH, KIDNAPPED MS. DEBORAH L. HERDMAN, A 24 YEAR OLD WOMAN. (HEREINAFTER VICTIM). V. WALSH BOUND AND GAGGED THE VICTIM WITH DUCT TAPE IN THE BACK OF A LIMOUSINE DRIVEN BY WALSH. THE VICTIM WAS IN THE REAR OF THE LIMOUSINE WITH THE APPELLANT, BOUND AND IMPRISONED, WAS DRIVEN TO A REMOTE AND UNPOPULATED AREA OF DORWARD COUNTY, WHERE THE VICTIM DIED OF ASPHYXIA. THE VICTIM'S NUDE BODY WAS FOUND BESIDE A DUMPSTER BEHIND A SHOPPING CENTER THE FOLLOWING DAY.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

NOW THE ARGUMENT BEFORE THIS COURT CONSISTS OF TWO ISSUES WHICH THE APPELLANT PASSED ALOUD FOR RESOLUTION. FIRST ARGUMENT BEING: AFTER IMPOSING A NATURAL LIFE SENTENCE, DOES THE ADDED SPECIAL PROVISION "THAT THE APPELLANT SHALL SERVE NO LESS THAN TWENTY-FIVE (25) YEARS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF FLORIDA STATUTE § 775.082 (1), AS APPLIED TO THE TRIAL COURT'S SENTENCE IMPOSED ON COUNT II, KIDNAPPING, § 787.01, A FIRST DEGREE FELONY BY STATUTE CONSTITUTE AN ILLEGAL SENTENCE DUE TO THE FACT THAT IT IS IN EXCESS OF THE STATUTORY MAXIMUM PUNISHMENT AUTHORIZED BY LAW FOR THE OFFENSE CHARGED. AND THE SECOND ARGUMENT BEING: DOES THE GENERAL RULE THAT ALL POINTS OF LAW WHICH HAVE BEEN ADJUDICATED BECOME THE 'LAW OF THE CASE' EVEN THOUGH A FUNDAMENTAL SENTENCING ERROR IS DISCOVERED?

ISSUE AND ARGUMENT I

DOES THE TRIAL COURT'S IMPOSITION OF A TERM OF A NATURAL LIFE SENTENCE WITH THE SPECIAL PROVISION THAT APPELLANT SERVE NO LESS THAN 25 YEARS AS APPLIED TO THE COURT'S SENTENCE ON COUNT II, KIDNAPPING, § 787.01, A FIRST DEGREE FELONY CONSTITUTE AN ILLEGAL SENTENCE DUE TO THE FACT THAT IT IS IN EXCESS OF THE MAXIMUM PUNISHMENT AUTHORIZED BY FLORIDA LAW.

ON JANUARY 27, 1988, THE BROWARD COUNTY GRAND JURY CHARGED BY INDICTMENT THE APPELLANT, AND CO-DEFENDANT V. WALSH, WITH THE FOLLOWING CRIMES: COUNT I, FIRST DEGREE PREMEDITATED MURDER, F.S. 782.04; AND COUNT II, KIDNAPPING, F.S. 787.01 AND 777.011.

THE ISSUE AT BARR IS EXCLUSIVELY WITH COUNT II OF THAT INDICTMENT. APPELLANT WAS CHARGED, TRIED, AND FOUND GUILTY OF KIDNAPPING THE VICTIM, A 24 YEAR OLD WOMAN ON JANUARY 2, 1988.

FLORIDA STATUTE § 787.01 (1)(2), KIDNAPPING STATES THAT A PERSON WHO KIDNAPS A PERSON IS GUILTY OF A FELONY OF THE 'FIRST DEGREE', AND PUNISHABLE BY IMPRISONMENT FOR A TERM OF YEARS NOT EXCEEDING LIFE OR AS PROVIDED IN § 775.082, F.S.

F.S. § 775.082 (3)(b) STATES THAT "... A PERSON WHO HAS BEEN CONVICTED OF ANY OTHER DESIGNATED FELONY MAY BE PUNISHED AS FOLLOWS: (b) FOR A FELONY OF THE 'FIRST DEGREE' BY A TERM OF IMPRISONMENT NOT EXCEEDING 40 YEARS OR WHEN SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED BY STATUTE, BY IMPRISONMENT FOR A TERM OF YEARS NOT EXCEEDING LIFE IMPRISONMENT.

IT IS APPELLANT'S CONTENTION THAT (1) THE TRIAL COURT'S FACTORING OF THE CRIME OF KIDNAPPING, § 787.01, F.S. AS A 'LIFE FELONY' IS AN ILLEGAL ENHANCEMENT OF THE CRIME CHARGED. THE COURT WILL PLEASE NOTE THAT THE FACT THAT A PERSON COMMITS THE OFFENSE OF KIDNAPPING OF A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF 13 ... WOULD BE GUILTY OF A 'LIFE FELONY' UNDER 787.01 (3)(a) 1, 2, 3, 4, + 5. IN THE CASE AT BAR, THE VICTIM WAS 24 YEARS OLD AND THUS THE IMPOSITION OF A 'LIFE FELONY' IS AN INAPPROPRIATE AND ILLEGAL ENHANCEMENT.

THE SECOND PART OF THE ISSUE DEALS WITH THE TRIAL COURT'S IMPOSITION OF THE NATURAL LIFE SENTENCE WITH THE SPECIAL PROVISION THAT APPELLANT SHALL SERVE NO LESS THAN 25 YEARS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF F.S. 775.082 (1)

IF THIS HONORABLE COURT WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE OF THE FACT THAT REGARDLESS OF WHETHER THE CORRECT PENALTY DESIGNATION FOR THE CRIME OF KIDNAPPING IS A FIRST DEGREE, OR A LIFE FELONY, THE MAXIMUM AUTHORIZED SENTENCE IS LIFE IN PRISON. APPELLANT CONTENDS THAT THE TRIAL COURT'S ENHANCEMENT OF THE PENALTY FOR KIDNAPPING FROM A FIRST DEGREE / LIFE FELONY TO THE PENALTY APPLICABLE TO A CAPITAL FELONY UNDER 775.082 (1) CONSTITUTES AN ILLEGAL ENHANCEMENT OF THAT PENALTY FOR THE CRIME OF KIDNAPPING AS AUTHORIZED BY FLORIDA LAW, THUS RENDERING THAT SENTENCE CONSTITUTIONALLY INFIRM,

THE COURTS HAVE HELD THAT "WHERE SENTENCING ERROR CAN OR CAN BE REQUIRED TO REQUIRE DEFENDANT TO BE INCARCERATED OR RESTRAINED FOR A GREATER LENGTH OF TIME THAN PROVIDED BY LAW, SENTENCING ERROR IS FUNDAMENTAL AND ENDURES, AND DEFENDANT IS ENTITLED TO RELIEF IN ANY AND EVERY MANNER POSSIBLE, I.E. ON DIRECT APPEAL ALTHOUGH NOT FIRST PRESENTED TO TRIAL COURT, BY POST CONVICTION RELIEF, OR BY EXTRAORDINARY REMEDY; AS TO SUCH FUNDAMENTAL SENTENCING ERROR DEFENDANT IS ENTITLED TO RELIEF UNDER ALTERNATIVE REMEDY NOT WITHSTANDING THAT HE COULD HAVE, BUT DID NOT RAISE ERROR ON APPEAL. REYNOLDS V. STATE, 429 S.2D 1331 (FLA 5 DCA 1983); JUDGE V. STATE, 596 S.2D 73, 77 (FLA 2 DCA 1991) (en banc) rev. den., 613 S.2D 5 (FLA 1992); ANDERSON V. STATE, 584 S.2D 1127 (FLA 4 DCA 1991); PINELLAS V. STATE, 599 S.2D 272 (FLA 5 DCA 1992). "WHERE A DEFENDANT HAS BEEN FOUND GUILTY OF AN OFFENSE UPON A LEGALLY SUFFICIENT CHARGE, AND THE SENTENCE IMPOSED IS NOT AUTHORIZED BY LAW, OR IS CONTRARY TO LAW, AND THE DEFENDANT SEEKS A DISCHARGE FROM CUSTODY IN HABEAS CORPUS PROCEEDING, HE MAY BE REMANDED FOR A LEGAL AND PROPER SENTENCE." BLACKWELDER V. MORRIS, 89 FLA 87, 103 S.2D 124 (1925); COLLINGSWORTH V. MAYO, 77 S.2D 843 (FLA 1955); AND JOHNSON V. STATE, 81 FLA 783, 89 S.2D 114 (1921)

APPELLANT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT ALTHOUGH THE SENTENCE OF NATURAL LIFE IS WITHIN THE STATUTORY LIMITS GIVEN FOR EITHER A FIRST DEGREE AND/OR LIFE FELONY KIDNAPPING, § 787.01, F.S. THE IMPOSITION OF THE PROVISION REQUIRING THE APPELLANT TO SERVE A SPECIFIC SET PERIOD OF TIME BEFORE BEING ELIGIBLE FOR PAROLE CONSTITUTES AN ILLEGAL SENTENCE AND REQUIRES THAT SUCH SENTENCE CONSTITUTIONALLY INFIRM.

THE COURTS HAVE HELD THAT A "MOTION TO CORRECT SENTENCE MAY BE USED ONLY TO CORRECT ILLEGAL SENTENCE GIVEN WITHOUT STATUTORY AUTHORITY."

SIMMONS V. STATE, 579 So 2d 874 (FLA 1DCA 1991). THE APPELLANT AVERS THAT THE FLORIDA LEGISLATURE INTENDED THAT THE CRIME OF KIDNAPPING, § 787.01, F.S. (COMMITTED AFTER 1983,) BE PUNISHED BY A TERM OF IMPRISONMENT FOR LIFE, OR A TERM OF IMPRISONMENT NOT TO EXCEED FORTY (40) YEARS. THE COURTS HAVE LONG HELD THAT "WHEN THE LANGUAGE OF A STATUTE IS PLAIN AND DOES NOT LEAD TO ABSURD OR IMPRACTICABLE RESULTS, THERE IS NO OCCASION OR EXCUSE FOR JUDICIAL CONSTRUCTION; THE LANGUAGE MUST BE ACCEPTED BY THE COURTS AS THE SOLE EVIDENCE OF THE ULTIMATE LEGISLATIVE INTENT, AND THE COURTS HAVE NO FUNCTION BUT TO APPLY AND ENFORCE THE STATUTE ACCORDINGLY."

CAMINETTI V. UNITED STATES, 242 US 470, 37 SET 192 (1916).

"WE KNOW OF NO CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER THE LAW OF THIS STATE WHICH WOULD EVER AUTHORIZE A TRIAL COURT TO SENTENCE A DEFENDANT TO A TERM OF IMPRISONMENT IN EXCESS OF THE STATUTORY MAXIMUM SET FOR THE CRIME FOR WHICH THE DEFENDANT STANDS CONVICTED." SUCH AN ERROR IS FUNDAMENTAL AND JURISDICTIONAL IN NATURE AND CAN NEVER BE CONSIDERED IRRELEVANT, MILD, OR HARMLESS, BUTLER V. STATE, 343 So 2d 93 (FLA 3DCA 1977); WILLIAMS V. STATE, 280 So 2d 518 (FLA 3DCA 1973); LAWSON V. STATE, 400 So 2d 1053 (FLA 2DCA 1981); GONZALEZ V. STATE 392 So 2d 334 (FLA 3DCA 1981).

THE HONORABLE J. ANSTEAD, DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS JUDGE, FOURTH DISTRICT, IN HIS DISSENTING OPINION IN THE CASE AT BAR, CORRECTLY NOTED THAT "THIS STATE HAS PROVIDED A SPECIFIC RULE OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE, RULE 3.800 WHICH

PERMITS A DEFENDANT TO SEEK RELIEF FROM AN ILLEGAL SENTENCE. THIS RULE AFFORDS A DEFENDANT WHO RECEIVES A SENTENCE THAT EXCEEDS THE MAXIMUM PROVIDED BY LAW THE FUNDAMENTAL RIGHT TO REQUEST AT ANY TIME A SENTENCE THAT FITS WITHIN THE CONFINES OF THE LAW. (CITATIONS OMITTED.) THUS AN ATTACK ON AN ILLEGAL SENTENCE CAN BE RAISED FOR THE FIRST TIME IN A RULE 3.800 MOTION, EVEN AFTER AN AFFIRMANCE OF THE JUDGMENT AND SENTENCE ON DIRECT APPEAL. (CITATIONS OMITTED). SINCE ILLEGAL SENTENCES CAN BE CORRECTED AT ANY TIME, THE DOCTRINE OF THE LAW OF THE CASE IS INAPPLICABLE." (A. EX. K, PG 63). [SEE ALSO; HARMON V. STATE, 547 S02D 1027 (FLA 1 DCA 1989); YOUNG V. STATE, 503 S02D 1360 (FLA 1 DCA 1987); STRAZZULA V. HENDRICK, 177 S02D 1, 4 (FLA 1965),

CONCLUSION

IT HAS BEEN WELL ESTABLISHED THAT "AN ILLEGAL SENTENCE CAN BE CORRECTED WITHOUT CONTEMPORANEOUS OBJECTION," TROTT V. STATE, 579 So2d 807 (FLA 5 DCA 1991); AND THAT A "CHALLENGE TO [AN] ILLEGAL SENTENCE MAY BE BROUGHT AT ANY TIME." OSPINA V. STATE, 579 So2d 810 (FLA 5 DCA 1991). THE APPELLANT AVERS THAT ON FEBRUARY 27, 1992, THE TRIAL COURT DEVIATED FROM AND EXCEEDED THE STATUTORY LIMITS SET BY LAW, WHEN THE COURT SENTENCED APPELLANT TO A TERM IN PRISON FOR NATURAL LIFE AND FURTHER ORDERED THAT APPELLANT "SHALL SERVE NO LESS THAN TWENTY-FIVE (25) YEARS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF F.S. 775.082(1). IN EFFECT, THE TRIAL COURT REMADE THE CRIME OF KIDNAPPING INTO A CAPITAL FELONY AND SENTENCED ACCORDINGLY,

THUS DOES APPELLANT RESPECTFULLY SUBMIT THAT THIS COURT ISSUE A WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS QUASHING THE LOWER COURT'S ORDER AFFIRMING THE DENIAL OF APPELLANT'S MOTION TO CORRECT SENTENCE VIA FLA. R. CRIM. P. RULE 3.800, (a), AND ORDER THAT APPELLANT BE RESENTENCED TO A TERM OF IMPRISONMENT THAT FITS WITHIN THE CONFINES OF THE LAWS OF THIS STATE.