### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 81,896

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

By\_\_\_\_Chief Deputy Clerk

MICHAEL BEDFORD,

Appellant,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

Appellee's Brief on the Merits

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

James J. Carney Florida Bar no. 475246 Assistant Attorney General 111 Geogia Ave. Suite 204 West Palm Beach, FL 33401

Counsel for Appellee

#

The Defendant h	tas to Count
	and having been adjudicated guilty homes, and the Court having given the Defendant an opportunity to
e heard and to offer mate suse being shown,	ir-s in mitigation of sentence, and to show cause why the should not be sentenced as provided by law, and no
	and the Court having on NOV. 22, 1988 deterred imposition of sentence until
Check either provision) if applicable)	and the Court having placed the Defendant on probation and having subsequently revoked the Defendant's probation by separate arter entered herein.
IT IS THE SENTE	ENCE OF THE LAW that;
☐ The Defendant pay a f	line of \$ plus \$ as the 5% surcharge required by F.S. 960.25.
	by at a mitted to the custody of the Department of Corrections
The Defendant is here (Name of local correct	by committed to the custody of the Sheriff of Broward County, Florida: ions authority to be inserted at printing, if ether than Sheriff!
	ine; unmarked sections are inapplicable)
	Natural Life WITHOUT PAROLE
□ For an indete	rminate period of 6 months to
ff "split" wentenck	of Corrections according to the serms and conditions of probation set forth in a separate order entered herein.
complete <u>either</u> of these two paragraphs	However, after serving a period of imprisonment in the balance of such sentence shall be suspended and the Defendant shall be placed on probation for a
unian imo parayrapris	period of under supervision of the Department of Corrections according to the terms and conditions of probation set forth in a separate order entered herein.
	SPECIAL PROVISIONS
By appropriate notation, to	he following provisions apply to the sentence imposed in this section:
Firearm — 3 year mandatory minimum	St. is further ordered that the 3 year minimum provisions of F.S. 775,087(2) are hereby imposed for the sentence specified in this court, as the Defendant possessed a firearm.
Drug Trafficking - mandatory minimum	It is further ordered that the
Retention of jurisdiction	The Court pursuant to F.S. 947.15(3) retains jurisdiction over the defendant for review of any Parole Commission release order for the period of The requisite findings by the Court are set forth in a separate order or stated on the record in open court.
Habitual Öffénder	The Defendant is adjudged a habitum offender and has been sentenced to an extended term in this sentence in accordance with the provisions of F.S. 775.084(4)(a). The requisite findings by the court are set forth in a separate order or stated on the record in open court.
Jail Credit	It is further ordered that the Defendent shall be allowed a total of 380 DAYS credit for such time as he has been represented prior to imposition of this sentence. Such credit reflects the following periods of incarperation (optional):
Consecutive/Concurrent	It is further ordered that the sentence imposed for this count shall run to consecutive to D concurrent with (check one) the sentence set forth in count
Consecutive/Concurrent (As to other convictions)	It is further ordered that the composite term of all sentences imposed for the counts specified in this order shall run Diconsecutive to Diconcurrent with (check one) the following:
	Any active sentence being served
	□ Specific sentences:
In the event the ordered and directed to do	e above sentence is to the Department of Corrections, the Sheriff of Broward County, Florida is her-by eliver the Defendant to the Department of Corrections together with a copy of this Judgment and Shortnore.
days from this date with	in Open Court was advised of his right to appeal from this Sentence by filling notice of appeal within the type of this Court, and the Defendants right to the assistance of coursel in taking said appeal at the his showing of indigency.
In imposing the AND THE \$200.00	above sentence, the Court further WAIVES THE VICTIM COSTS, THE ASSET TRUST FUND.
	20th JANUARY
DONE AND OR	DERED in Open Court at Broward County, Fierida, his 20th day of JANUARY
A.D., 18 89	
ANDRAND COURTY, P.	
	Mossin
•	HIDGE MEL GROSSMAN

Respectfully submitted,

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

JAMES J. CARNEY Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar #475246 111 Georgia Avenue, Suite 204 W. Palm Beach, Florida 33401

Counsel for Appellee